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The following shall be a part of RFP 3238.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.


1.	Attachment H. Statement of Understanding

	We believe that this only applies to contractor personnel that are performing the solution 	implementation services and not the Cloud Services Provider personnel that are hosting the 	solution.

Cloud service provider personnel are required to sign an NDA, that covers all customer data, 	not specifically the data belonging to a single tenant of the system. Additionally, we assume that the NDA language that is incorporated as part of the overall cloud/SaaS subscription agreement will meet this requirement.

	The CSP’s process requires employees to sign and acknowledge receipt of the Employee 	Handbook, the Code of Conduct, and the Employee Proprietary Information and Rights 	Agreement. Employees also take code of conduct and legal compliance training. Initial and 	annual Security Awareness Training includes security best practices, threat recognition, 	compliance and policy requirements, and reporting obligations. Follow-up security awareness 	training is presented to all personnel.

	We request that these requirements be modified to reflect that this is not required for Cloud 	Service Provider employees hosting the solution.

Vendors should describe their exceptions and reasons in the “Exceptions” section of their proposal.  The state currently uses Cloud Service Providers/SaaS subscription models for systems in other agencies.  



2.	Section 13. Terms and Conditions
	13.2.1 Background Checks

	We believe that this only applies to contractor personnel that are performing the solution 	implementation services and not the Cloud Services Provider (CSP) personnel that are hosting 	the solution. For example, Cloud Service Provider engages the services of a background 	screening vendor to conduct background checks, as on employees at the time of hire in the U.S. 	Can MHD please modify these requirements accordingly?

Vendors should describe their proposed exceptions, and reasons, in the “Exceptions” section of their proposal.  The state takes security very seriously and security measures such as background checks apply not only during implementation, but throughout the operational live of the system.  

The state is open to modifying the requirement or approach to meeting the requirement as long as security objectives are met.  Typically this is addressed during the vendor negotiation phase.  For example, the state may require the CSP to provide signed statements attesting to employee background checks.  

3.	Attachment D. Contract Form
21.  STATE OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.Any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration under the Contract), or 	any other documents or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by Contractor (or its subcontractors) in performance of its obligations under this Contract shall be the exclusive property of the State and all such materials shall be delivered into State possession by Contractor upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this Contract.  Contractor shall not use, willingly allow, or cause to have such materials used for any purpose other than performance of Contractor’s obligations under this Contract without the prior written consent 	of the State.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the State shall have no proprietary interest in any materials licensed for use by the State that are subject to patent, trademark, or copyright protection.

For PaaS/SaaS solutions, a Cloud Services Provider would be responsible for maintaining access in terms of performance and availability to MHD's data. MHD's data would be owned by MHD. The State would have access to its data and metadata, but not all of the PaaS/SaaS solution source code. MHD would have full rights to extract their data at any time during the subscription service. However, PaaS/SaaS Cloud Services Provider does not typically offer system source code because it is inapplicable to software delivered as a service subscription through a multitenant architecture. While it is possible to provide the source code in an escrow account for a configured solution, the source code would only be able to operate in the Cloud Service Provider's PaaS/SaaS environment.  Therefore, can MHD remove the source code requirements?

Vendors should describe their proposed exceptions, and reasons, in the “Exceptions” section of their proposal.  MHD cannot remove this requirement from the standard state contract at this point during the RFP process.  Typically this is addressed during the vendor negotiation phase. 

Other agencies in the state currently use SaaS and Commercial-Off-The-Shelf software (hosted on state servers) where the state does not have direct ownership of source code.  MHD is very open to working with PaaS/SaaS vendors.  



4.	Attachment D. Contract Form
1. WARRANTIES.	

A. General Warranty.  Contractor warrants that all services, deliverables, and/or work products under this Contract shall be completed in a workmanlike manner consistent with standards in the trade, profession, or industry, shall conform to or exceed the specifications set forth in the incorporated attachments; and shall be fit for ordinary use, of good quality, with no material defects.

B. System Compliance.  Contractor warrants that any information system application(s) shall 	not experience abnormally ending and/or invalid and/or incorrect results from the application(s) in the operating and testing of the business of the State.

We believe that this only applies to contractor personnel and the prime contract provider that 	will be performing the solution configuration and implementation services and not the Cloud Services Provider personnel that are hosting the solution. We request that these requirements be modified to reflect that this is not required for the Cloud Service Provider 	hosting the solution.

Vendors should describe their proposed exceptions, and reasons, in the “Exceptions” section of their proposal.  MHD cannot remove this requirement from the standard state contract at this point during the RFP process.  Typically this is addressed during the vendor negotiation phase.    MHD expects quality deliverables/services during implementation and throughout the operational live of the system.

5.	Attachment D. Contract Form
	9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

As a multi-tenant cloud service provider, we do not typically offer a Right to Audit clause as part of the base service offering. As a multi-tenant service, compartmentalization is virtual, not physical. Annual site visits can be arranged at the MHD’s expense, but in consideration of our other customers, random access cannot be permitted. We have third party auditors that inspect and review our security. We undergo annual audits for compliance with additional frameworks such as SSAE 16 SOC 1, SOC 2, SOC 3, ISO 27001, and PCI-DSS Level 1. The results of these audits can be provided to MHD as desired under NDA. Is this acceptable to meeting MHD’s requirements?

Vendors should describe their proposed exceptions, and reasons, in the “Exceptions” section of their proposal.  MHD cannot remove this requirement from the standard state contract at this point during the RFP process.  Typically this is addressed during the vendor negotiation phase.  MHD is open to working with the vendor to find a method of verification that is reasonable for both the state and the vendor.  

6.	What is MHDs budget for one-time implementation cost?  What is MHD’s budget for recurring software license and support cost?

Current biennium (ends June 31, 2017) budget is:
Fiscal year 1 = $180,000 Fiscal year 2 = $50,000
Total for the current biennium = $230,000 (this combines one-time and ongoing costs)

The budget for the next biennium has not yet been prepared.  The estimated ongoing support is estimated to be in the range of $30,000 – 45,000/year.  This does not include potential enhancements or added modules that MHD may decide to implement.    

7.	Related to the Deliverable Submission and Review Process, item 5.2 on page 19 of the RFP be, we use an online portal to post and track deliverable acceptance. For agencies requiring an alternative process, as currently outlined within the RFP, the price of deliverables is increased. Can the vendor propose an alternative, cost-savings deliverable submission process? Can elements of this requirement be removed / updated in order to accommodate alternative deliverable tracking and submission process?

The agency is open to vendors proposing the methodology, approach, tasks and deliverables that they believe are appropriate to successfully meet the agency’s requirements while mitigating project risks.  The agency is interested in focusing resources on the delivery of a system solution rather than “overhead” tasks that contribute little to the end product.      

Regarding RFP section: “5.2 Deliverable Submission and Review Process” – The agency project team will be relatively small and should be able to review and sign-off on deliverables in a timely manner (if work products/deliverables are of high quality).  Vendors can clarify in their proposal their recommended approach and assumptions.  

The agency encourages vendors to propose a methodology that has been successful and is appropriate for this project.  The agency is most interested in meeting their requirements at a reasonable cost.  

8.	Did the legislature approve a line item for this project in the agency's budget? If so, what is the amount and what does it cover?

Current biennium (ends June 31, 2017) budget is:
Fiscal year 1 = $180,000 Fiscal year 2 = $50,000
Total for the current biennium = $230,000 (this combines one-time and ongoing costs)

9.	Requirement #13.3.4.1 requires the contractor to have onsite project management for the duration of the project. While achievable, this will greatly increase the overall cost of the project when more cost-effective methods for contractor staff to manage the project have proven to be effective in similar projects.  Although on-site presence by contractor staff will be planned during ideal phases of the project, can the State alter / remove this requirement, especially in light of the State's encouragement of alternative methods of communication (See item 6.6.6 on page 42 of RFP)?

MHD is open to vendors proposing their approach to project management including the amount of time spent onsite and methods of communication.  In regards to #13.3.4.1, MHD will not require that the project manager be onsite 100% of the time.  

10.	Requirement 13.3.10 requires many activities to be conducted on site that would typically be performed remotely by the contractor. This will add significant travel related costs to the project. Can the State alter / remove this requirement, especially in light of the State's encouragement of alternative methods of communication (See item 6.6.6 on page 42 of RFP)?

Section 13.3.10 is not a requirement that vendor staff work onsite during the entirety of those tasks (e.g. interviews, analysis/design, training, and testing).  The agency is open to vendors proposing their approach to the project, including how their team will work on-site and off-site, as well as methods of communication and collaboration.   The agency is interested in executing the project in the most effective manner possible and ensuring a quality system is delivered.  
 
11.	Did MHD use a vendor to help develop the RFP? If so, can you please share the name of the vendor?

No.

12.	Has a budget been defined for this Project effort? If so, what is that budget?

Please see #8 above.

13.	Did MHD evaluate solutions that could meet its requirements through vendor demonstrations leading up to the RFP release? If so, what types and names of solutions and vendors were evaluated?

[bookmark: _GoBack]The agency has performed objective research to determine the viability of solutions in the market place to meet the agency’s needs.  This includes: vendor discussions, product demonstrations, and acquiring preliminary cost estimates.  Sometime back, the agency released a Request for Information (RFI).  Vendors involved in agency discussion included: GL Solutions, Praeses, MicroPact, Accela, and Salesforce.com.   The agency also solicited quotations from the Nevada Enterprise Information Technology Services (EITS) Division.   

14.	Is MHD willing to divide the scope of the effort contained within the RFP 3238 into phases for a more effective implementation effort?

MHD is open to vendors proposing a phased approach.

15.	How many records does MHD anticipate in the data migration effort from the legacy systems to the new system?

MHD does not have a specific count at this point.  Please see ATTACHMENT N – MHD OPERATION AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY OVERVIEW for information on the legacy systems as well as metrics for the various business areas.

16.	Does MHD require any integration to third party systems beyond the scope of 5.8? If so, please list them.

There is no integration between the new system and third-party systems required within the scope of this project.  

17.	Does MHD require a need for any Change Management for this solution?

We assume the vendor is referring to “Organizational” change management – which involves managing the effect the new system will have on the organization or the people side of change management.  This includes the effective transition to new business processes, organizational structure changes and cultural changes.  

MHD will oversee organizational change management activities with input from the vendor.  Given the limited funds, MHD prefers to have the vendor focus on delivering an effective solution and providing comprehensive user training.   

18.	Does MHD anticipate using live agent chat?

MHD has not considered live agent chat for this project; however, it is open to the concept.  This would be evaluated based on costs/benefits and security considerations.  

19.	What is the implementation timeline? When does this system need to be live?

Ideally, the agency would like to implement the system in the June 2016 – December 2016 timeframe.  The production go-live would be January 2017.  This would leave the remaining five (5) months in the biennium for “fine tuning” and working out any issues.  
20.	In section 3.4 it is stated that all software used for project management must be approved by the state.  Is Salesforce an approved project management tool?

MHD is open to using Salesforce as a project management tool.  MHD would need to assess Salesforce costs/benefits and effectiveness for use on this project.  MHD is open to using any vendor tools that will be effective for the project.  

21.	Does MHD have IT personnel that will be able to assist in the data cleansing of legacy data 	prior to the data migration into the new system?

There are some Department IT resources that can provide limited assistance with data cleansing.  There is not a Database Administrator on staff.  MHD will work with the vendor to devise an effective approach to data migration. 

22.	How many online forms in total are expected to be included in this implementation?

The vendor should allocate for approximately 5 forms with the ability to add more in the future.


ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3238.

Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	






	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.
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